Breast Development and Endocrinology 3rd Edition

Volume 1

Dynseli

Breast Development and Endocrinology

3rd Edition, Volume 1

May 22, 2019

https://breast.is

Dynseli

Disclaimer:

This information is not meant to substitute medical advice, and it is not meant to treat or cure any condition. It is not intended to diagnose, treat, prevent, or cure any disease. While the author has striven for this book to be accurate at the time it was written, there are many gaps in knowledge about endocrinology, and the understanding of endocrinology is also evolving. The reader of this pdf is responsible for taking care of their well-being. Please research and check with local relevant authoritative guidelines, and/or with your practitioner. The author of this pdf is not liable or responsible whatsoever for injury or loss by accident, error, omission or any other cause occasioned with information or suggestions in this book. This pdf makes no claims of efficacy.

The reader should regularly consult a physician in matters relating to her health and particularly with respect to any symptoms that may require diagnosis or medical attention. It is inadvisable to diagnose yourself for treatment, for example about imbalances; see a medical professional in that case.

Information or suggestions in this pdf is not intended for conceiving, pregnant or lactating women, and for those with poor physical or mental health. Also, information and suggestions are not recommended in the presence of unhealthy habits like smoking.

The information in this pdf has not been evaluated by the FDA.

License:

"Disclaimer" above is in public domain.

Attribution-NoDerivatives 4.0 International (CC BY-ND 4.0) <u>https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nd/4.0/</u> applies to Breast Development and Endocrinology Volume 1.

Contents

I Biology	1
Breast Development	1
Endocrinology	1
Menstrual Cycle	2
II Hormone Imbalances	3
FSH and Prolactin	
Premenstrual Syndrome	3
Androgens and LH	
Fertility	4
Physical	5
Theories on Cancer Treatments	5
III Appendix	6
Glossary	6
IV References	
I Biology	8
II Hormone Imbalances	8
III Appendix	
11	

I Biology

Breast Development

The hormones of estrogens, progestogens, prolactin and androgens influence breast tissue through Estrogen Receptor Alpha (ER α), Progesterone Receptor B (PRB) and Prolactin Receptor (PrlR). ER α , Estrogen Receptor Beta (ER β) and progesterone receptors (PR) in the reproductive tract are important for estrogen balance and fertility. As each receptor is positively stimulated by its respective hormone, it also becomes desensitized. There are more receptor types in the breast and body that cannot be ignored due to health reasons.

Positive estrogenic stimulation, or agonism, of ER α causes lengthening of milk ducts. Branching of milk ducts, which increases the amount of end buds, is caused by progestogenic agonism on PRB. The formation of milk lobules converted from the end of milk ducts and their continued growth is caused by prolactin's effects on PrlR. Progesterone also has a role in differentiation, or conversion of end points into milk lobules, by influencing prolactin, during secretory phase.

Endocrinology

Of ERα, ERβ and PRB, mild potentencies of their non-respective steroid hormone enhances each hormone receptor's response to its respective hormone, known as receptor upregulation. Without compatible synergistic action, the response to a receptor's own specific hormone dulls with quantity or potency, known as receptor downregulation. Upregulation and downregulation also applies to non-steroid hormone receptors like PrlR. Too much of a potent hormone can damage its own and other interacting receptors. An imbalance of too much of one type of hormone is a cancer and fertility risk. The breast and reproductive tract contain more types of cell receptors, but the mentioned above are the focus so far.

Estrogens are formed from androgens through a process called aromatase, and aromatase enzymes are located within tissue where $ER\alpha$ and $ER\beta$ are also present. $ER\beta$ is located in ovarian, egg, bone, brain and adipose tissue. Within the ovarian follicle or corpus luteum, androgen production by theca cells, and estrogen production by granulosa cells are together important for reproductive health.

Estrogens, progestogens, androgens, glucocorticoids and mineralocorticoids are steroid hormones which are fat soluble. Steroid hormones react with their respective receptors within cells.

Follicle stimulating hormone (FSH), luteinizing hormone (LH), prolactin (Prl), anti-müllerian hormone (AMH) and inhibin are amino acid based hormones that regulate the menstrual cycle. These hormones do not last as long in the body as steroid hormones, and these hormones interact with receptors at cells walls. Balance of these non-steroid hormones, and the health of their corresponding receptors is also important.

Menstrual Cycle

The <u>menstrual cycle</u> will be divided into the following 4 phases to simplify timing: menses (menstruation), proliferative, secretory and premenstrual. Follicular phase has been divided up into menses and proliferative phases. Menstruation is when the uterus lining is shed. The proliferative phase is when the uterus rebuilds to prepare for potential pregnancy, and this lasts from the end of menstruation until ovulation. Ovulation is an intermediate time between proliferative and secretory phases. The luteal phase has been divided into secretory and premenstrual phases. The corpus luteum, which produces progesterone, is present during the secretory phase. Premenstrual phase begins after the corpus luteum disintegrates, and it lasts until menstruation starts.

During menstruation, FSH increases menstruation intensity, and prolactin decreases menstruation intensity. Estrogen is not a dominant hormone during menstruation. FSH develops the follicle, but it also causes follicles to be released. During proliferative phase, one or few follicles continue to develop which raises inhibin and estrogen. Inhibin signals the pituitary to not release FSH, and for new follicles not to be released. Rising estrogen levels prepare the reproductive tract for egg implantation. Estrogen suppresses LH at first, but a buildup of estrogen eventually causes the body to release LH. LH allows ovulation to occur, releasing the egg from the follicle, leaving behind the corpus luteum in the ovary. The sequential rise of LH, then FSH initially matures the corpus luteum within the ovary during ovulation. FSH then pushes the egg towards the uterus. Progesterone is produced by the corpus luteum, which is a temporary organ whose function is to signal to the pituitary gland to momentarily prevent menstruation, for purposes of maintaining fertilization or pregnancy. Lower amounts of estrogens than progestogens are produced during the luteal phase and pregnancy. The pituitary gland releases prolactin, which signals the corpus luteum (and if during pregnancy, the placenta) to release more progesterone, creating a feedback loop. Progesterone increases prolactin, and prolactin lowers FSH and LH. If the egg is not fertilized, the corpus luteum dies within the ovaries. Once progesterone levels drop during premenstrual phase, the pituitary gland begins to release FSH, allowing menstruation to begin. Outside of the secretory phase, early premenstrual phase or pregnancy, progesterone amounts in the body are existent (due to the adrenal glands), but negligible.

II Hormone Imbalances

Here is about hormone balance and some of their manifestations. Serum prolactin, progesterone and estrogen levels work synergistically for breast maintenance, and their proportion is important throughout the cycle. There are more hormones that play a role in the health of the human body.

FSH and Prolactin

Prolonged or heavy periods can be explained by low prolactin and abnormally high FSH. Light or a delay in menstruation can be explained by high prolactin levels.

Prolactin imbalances may aggravate mood disorders. Dopamine and prolactin influence each other. The brain also reacts to hormones on its own.

Premenstrual Syndrome

Premenstrual syndrome (PMS) can occur during premenstrual phase. It is commonly recommended to lower salt intake and to avoid alcohol during this time.

Low levels of progestogens allopregnanolone, pregnenolone, pregnanolone and 5α dihydroprogesterone are associated with negative mood during the late luteal phase. Pregnenolone is the precursor to progesterone, which suggests lack of progestogen conversion for hormonal balance. Progestogens allopregnanolone and 5α -dihydroprogesterone are neurosteroids formed by 5α -reductase from other progestogens that help the brain cope with stress during the luteal phase. Alcohol may cause problems, because it decreases allopregnanolone levels during premenstrual phase.

Premenstrual syndrome is associated with hormonal changes due to the monthly disintegration of the corpus luteum at the end of secretory phase. The corpus luteum produces the majority of progestogens in the human body, and lack of certain progesterones are associated with negative symptoms. During premenstrual phase, progesterone levels drop due to an absence of the corpus luteum, and this likely contributes susceptibility to premenstrual syndome.

Lowering salt intake is commonly recommended to reduce PMS bloating. Many symptoms can be attributed to high levels of mineralocorticoids, which regulate salts and are breakdown products of progestogens. The mineralocorticoid alderosterone influences the body to retain liquids and sodium, but it also causes loss of potassium. High amounts of potassium salt were also surprisingly associated with PMS symptoms. These imbalances may be responsible for bodily swelling as well.

Androgens and LH

Androgenic symptoms like hirsutism, alcopecia and poor insulin sensitivity are associated with polycystic ovary syndrome (PCOS) and high LH. <u>Estrogen deficiency</u> occurs when insufficient

estrogen is converted from androgens, and it contributes to a buildup of other steroid hormones, including androgens. Exercise is commonly used as a treatment for PCOS to lower abnormal amounts of androgens caused by negative feedback due to insulin insensitivity.

Androgen insufficiency in women is rare, except in late reproductive years and afterwards. A few symptoms of adrenal insufficiency are fatigue, loss of libido, loss of appetite and nauseousness. Androgens play a role in women's health, for instance, for causing growth spurts during puberty.

Fertility

A hormone imbalance can cause reduced fertility, and a prolonged excessive imbalance is a risk for sterility. Hormone receptor insensitivity can result from an excess of any particular hormone which can contribute to lowered fertility. PCOS, uterine fibriods, ovarian shrinkage, primary ovarian insufficiency (POI) and endometriosis are associated with reduced fertility.

Progesterone deficiency or insensitivity of the reproductive tract, and abnormally high levels of bodily estrogen can contribute to endometriosis (uterine tissue growing outside the uterus). A past history of heavy menstruation that spreads uterine shedding can also contribute to endometriosis as in retrograde menstruation. Severe endometriosis may block physical passageways needed for fertilization. Progesterone with estrogen, likely by offering antagonist or opposing actions, have reduced endometriosis in a study.

PCOS is consistent with abnormally high LH and androgen levels, which is consistent with low estrogen levels. Severe PCOS can cause damage to the ovaries.

Contractions are caused by high serum levels of FSH or LH, which is a risk to an existing pregnancy.

In cases of ovarian or fallopian tube shrinkage, reduced fertility can often be reversed, until if sterility occurs. The fallopian tubes, like the breasts, are affected by $ER\alpha$, and the ovaries are affected by $ER\beta$.

An imbalance of low estrogen, high FSH and low AMH levels is consistent with diminished ovarian reserve (DOR). POI is a similar condition to DOR that is also marked by low estrogen and high FSH levels. Symptoms of POI are similar to those of low estrogen and low androgen levels. Estrogen insensitivity could possibly be associated with POI and DOR. Low levels of inhibin are also associated with reduced fertility.

An excess of clover, hops and the mycotoxin ZEN are capable of shrinking the gonads which can eventually lead to the occurrence of sterility. Clover and hops are definitely known to raise prolactin. Lowered birth-weight of animals is anecdotal evidence of prolactin properties of ZEN, which is considered a mycoestrogen. For animals grazing on clover, the outcome of reduced fertility has been known as "clover disease." Farm animals that were fed clover and were administered estrogen had less offspring than animals that just ate clover by itself. Based on clover's stronger effects on ERβ in the reproductive tract than hops, clover's infertility effects appear to be more potent than hops.

High prolactin, coupled with low levels of FSH, can cause symptoms consistent with diminished fertility and shrinkage of the ovaries. Progesterone and prolactin are capable of pausing the menstrual cycle for pregnancy or nursing, as are also their roles during the luteal phase.

There may be other hormonal imbalances that cause reproductive changes which contribute to lack of fertility. Not all infertility cases can be determined by symptoms of menstrual irregularity.

For post-menopausal women, progesterone levels are naturally negligible due to lack of menstrual cycling.

Physical

A history of hormonal inconsistencies can be related to breast conditions. Prolactin influences mammary gland size which possibly then influences nipple or areola development. Estrogen causes the extension of ducts, which allows room for branching by other hormones. Otherwise, a hormone excess can cause fibriotic breasts. In theory, a lack of bodily prolactin, and possibly an excess of estrogen can be a cause for inverted nipple. Ductal elongation is caused by estrogen, so a consistent higher proportion of estrogen to prolactin or progesterone can explain the shape of tuberous breasts. History of menstrual irregularities may be common with tuberous breasts or inverted nipples.

Theories on Cancer Treatments

When a well intended cancer treatment works against a specific cancer, the cancer's receptors usually become desensitized. This situation is also seen in the analogies of steroid and drug use, where more and more is needed to get a desired effect to a diminished body response and diminishing ability for bodily regulation. With receptor targeted therapy, the receptor must be re-sensitized for a cancer therapy to remain effective. This often seems to be the case in receptor negative types of cancer. Otherwise, a stronger medicine is given, and it becomes less and less effective. Not all substances with a specific hormone attribute have anti-cancer properties to be used for re-sensitization of receptor responses. This idea was extended from a few studies about upregulating specific receptors for more effective cancer treatment.

It is thought that insoluble dietary plant fiber, which otherwise cannot be absorbed into the bloodstream, is digested by intestinal flora to produce anti-cancer chemicals which enter the body.

III Appendix

Glossary

- $\alpha = Alpha$
- $\beta = Beta$
- 5α-reductase = Enzyme that converts Testosterone or Progesterone into more potent forms
- Agonism = Positive activation
- Alveologenesis = Creation of milk lobules
- Antagonism = Negative activation
- Anti-müllerian hormone = A hormone that gives an indication of ovarian reserve
- Differentiation = Conversion of a type of cell into another
- DOR = Diminished Ovarian Reserve
- Endometriosis = Uterine tissue that grows outside the uterus
- ERα = Estrogen Receptor Alpha
- $ER\beta = Estrogen$ Receptor Beta
- FSH = Follicle Stimulating Hormone
- Gonadotrophin = Hormone released by the pituitary gland; These include LH, FSH and prolactin
- Inhibin = ovarian hormone that reduces FSH secretion
- Lactagogue = Galactagogue = Breastfeeding herb
- LH = Luteinizing Hormone
- Mycoestrogen = A fungal estrogen
- Mycotoxin = A toxin made by fungi
- PCOS = Polycystic Ovarian Syndrome
- POI = Primary Ovarian Insufficiency
- PR = Progesterone Receptors refering to any subtype
- PRB = Progesterone Receptor B
- Phytohormone = Plant based hormone
- PrlR = Prolactin Receptor
- Prl = Prolactin = Luteotrophic Hormone = LTH

IV References

- Linacre Q. Ovulation, a sign of health. 2017 Nov; 84(4): 343–355. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC5730019/.
- Nussey S, Whitehead S. Endocrinology: An Integrated Approach. Oxford: BIOS Scientific. 2001. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK22/.
- Growth and Development: Human Growth and Development. Encyclopædia Britannica.
- Brisken C, O'Malley B. Hormone action in the mammary gland. Cold Spring Harb Perspect Biol. Dec 2012; 2(12). <u>https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC2982168/</u>.
- Li Y, Yuan YY, Meeran SM, Tollefsbol TO. Synergistic epigenetic reactivation of estrogen receptor-α (ERα) by combined green tea polyphenol and histone deacetylase inhibitor in ERα-negative breast cancer cells. Mol Cancer. 2010; 9: 274. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC2967543/.
- *Li* Y, Meeran SM, Patel SN, Chen H, Hardy TM, Tollefsbol TO. Epigenetic reactivation of estrogen receptor-α (ERα) by genistein enhances hormonal therapy sensitivity in ERα-negative breast cancer. Mol Cancer. 2013; 12: 9. <u>https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3577460/</u>.
- Lephart ED. Modulation of Aromatase by Phytoestrogens. Enzyme Res. 2015; 2015: 594656. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4699002/.
- Holesh JE, Lord M. Phsiology, Ovulation. Carilion Clinic. October 6, 2017. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK441996/.
- Betts JG, Desaix P, Johnson E, Johnson JE, Korol O, Kruse D, Poe B, Wise JA, Womble M, Young KA, et al. 2017. Anatomy and Physiology. Houston (TX): Rice University. <u>https://openstax.org/details/books/anatomy-and-physiology</u>.
- Estrogen. Encyclopædia Britannica, 2012.
- Inhibin. Encyclopædia Britannica, 2019.
- Prolactin. Encyclopædia Britannica, 2012.
- Menstruation. Encyclopædia Britannica, 2012.
- Hormone. Encyclopædia Britannica. 2012.
- Mammary Gland. Encyclopædia Britannica. 2012.

Steroid Hormone. Encyclopædia Britannica. 2012.

Progesterone. Encyclopædia Britannica, 2012.

Ovary. Encyclopædia Britannica. 2012.

Androgen: Hormone. Encyclopædia Britannica. September 24, 2016. https://www.britannica.com/science/androgen.

I Biology

Breast Development

- Horseman ND, Gregerson KA. Prolactin Actions. J Mol Endocrinology. 2013 Dec; 52(1). <u>https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/24130130</u>.
- Jemstrom H, Olsson H. Breast Size in Relation to Endogenous Hormone Levels, Body Constitution, and Oral Contraceptive Use in Healthy Nulligravid Women Aged 19-25 Years. Am J Epidemiol. 1997 Apr 1 ;145(7). <u>https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/9098173</u>.
- Premenstrual Breast Changes. ADAM Encyclopedia. July 2015. https://www.nlm.nih.gov/medlineplus/ency/article/003153.htm.

Endocrinology

Stocco C. Tissue Physiology and Pathology of Aromatase. Steroids 77.1 -2 (2012): 27-35. Web. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3286233/.

Menstrual Cycle

II Hormone Imbalances

Polycystic Ovary Syndrome. ADAM Encyclopedia. 2014. <u>https://www.nlm.nih.gov/medlineplus/ency/</u> <u>article/000369.htm</u>.

FSH and Prolactin

Premenstrual Syndrome

Aldosterone. Encyclopædia Britannica. 2012.

Premenstrual Syndrome. Encyclopædia Britannica. 2012.

Premenstrual Syndrome. ADAM Encyclopedia. July 2015.

EurekAlert: Women's Iron Intake May Help to Protect Against PMS. University of Massachusettes. 2013. <u>https://www.eurekalert.org/pub_releases/2013-02/uoma-wii022013.php</u>.

- Rosenfeld R, Livne D, Nevo O, Dayan L, Milloul V, Lavi S, Jacob G. Hormonal and volume dysregulation with premenstrual syndrome. Hypertension. 2008; 51(4). <u>https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/18259015</u>.
- Nyberg S, Andersson A, Zingmark E, Wahlstrom G, Backstrom T, Sundstrom-Poromaa I. The effect of low dose of alcohol on allopregnanolone serum concentrations across the menstrual cycle in women with severe premenstrual syndrome and controls. Psychoneuroendocrinology. October 2005; 30(9). <u>http://www.psyneuen-journal.com/article/S0306-4530(05)00117-4/fulltext</u>.
- Wang M, Seippel L, Purdy RH, Backstrom T. Relationship between symptom severity and steroid variation in women with premenstrual syndrome: study on serum pregnenolone, pregnenolone sulfate, 5-alpha-pregnane-3,20-dione and 3 alpha-hydroxy-5 alpha-pregnan-20-one. J Clin Endocrinol Metab. Mar 1996; 81(3). <u>https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/8772579</u>.
- Melcangi RC, Panzica GC. Allopregnanolone: state of the art. Prog Neurobiol. Feb 2014; 113. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/24121112.
- Sripada RK, Marx CE, King, AP, Rampton IC, Ho SS, Liberon I. Allopregnanolone Elevations Following Pregnenolone Administration Are Associated with Enhanced Activation of Emotion Regulation Neurocircuits. Biol Psychiatry. 2013 Jun; 73(11). <u>https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/23348009</u>.
- Hellgren C, Akerud H, Skalkidou A, Backstrom T, Sundstrom-Poromaa I. Low serum allopregnanolone is associated with symptoms of depression in late pregnancy. *Neuropsychobiology*. 2014; 69. <u>https://www.karger.com/Article/FullText/358838</u>.
- Rey M, Coirini H. Synthetic neurosteroids on brain protection. Neural Regen Res. Jan 2015; 10(1). https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4357103/.

Androgens and LH

- Adrenal Insufficiency and Addison's Disease. NIDDK. 2016. <u>https://www.niddk.nih.gov/health-information/health-topics/endocrine/adrenal-insufficiency-addisons-disease/Pages/fact-sheet.aspx</u>.
- Androgen insufficiency in women: diagnostic and therapeutic implications. Hum. Reprod. Update (September/October 2004) 10 (5): 421-432. <u>https://academic.oup.com/humupd/article/10/5/421/769528</u>.
- Involvement of androgens in ovarian health and disease. Mol. Hum. Reprod. (2013) 19 (12): 828-837. <u>https://academic.oup.com/molehr/article/19/12/828/1077154</u>.
- Androgen actions in the ovary: balance is key. J Endocrinol September 1, 2014 222 R141-R151. http://joe.endocrinology-journals.org/content/222/3/R141.long.

Fertility

- Diseases and Conditions that Influence Fertility. NICHD. <u>https://www.nichd.nih.gov/health/topics/infertility/conditioninfo/Pages/health-factors.aspx</u>.
- Endometriosis. ADAM Encyclopedia. 2018. https://medlineplus.gov/ency/article/000915.htm.
- Endometriosis. Mayo Clinic. <u>https://www.mayoclinic.org/diseases-conditions/endometriosis/home/ovc-20236421</u>.
- Li X, Feng Y, Lin JF, Billing H, Shao R. Endometrial progesterone resistance and PCOS. J Biomed Sci. (2014) Jan 9; 21 (2). <u>https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3917599/</u>.
- Progesterone Alleviates Endometriosis via Inhibition of Uterine Cell Proliferation, Inflammation and Angiogenesis in an Immunocompetent Mouse Model. <u>https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/27776183</u>.
- Estrogen and progesterone receptor subtype expression in granulosa cells from women with polycystic ovary syndrome. <u>https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/25603724</u>.
- Shao R, Cao S, Wang X, Feng Y, Billig H. The elusive and controversial roles of estrogen and progesterone receptors in human endometriosis. Am J Transl Res. 2014; 6(2): 104-113. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3902220/.
- Solak KA, Santos RR, van den Berg M, Blaauboer BJ, Roelen BA, van Duursen MB. Naringenin (NAR) and 8-prenylnaringenin (8-PN) reduce the developmental competence of porcine oocytes in vitro. Reprod Toxicol. 2014 Nov;49:1-11. <u>https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/24905140</u>.
- Overk CR, Yao P, Chadwick LR, Nikolic D, Sun Y, Cuendet MA, Deny Y, Hedayat AS, Pauali GF, Farnsworth NR, van Breeman RB, Bolton JL. Comparison of the invitro estrogenic activities of compounds from hops (Humulus lupulus) and red clover (Trifolium pratense). J Agric Food Chem. 2005 Aug 10;53(16):6246-53. <u>https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC1815392/</u>.
- Berry W, Denison MS, Klasing KC, Millam JR, Rochester JR, Stevenson L. Dietary Red Clover (Trifolium Pratense) Induces Oviduct Growth and Decreases Ovary and Testes Growth in Japanese Quail Chicks. Reprod Toxicol. 2008[2009];27(1). https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC2858001/.
- Ovarian overproduction of androgens. ADAM Encyclopedia. 2014. https://www.nlm.nih.gov/medlineplus/ency/article/001165.htm.
- *EurekAlert!* Women advised to avoid ZEN bust-enhancing supplements because of possible cancer risk. Washington (DC): Wiley; 2011 <u>https://www.eurekalert.org/pub_releases/2011-12/w-wat120811.php</u>.
- Poluzzi E, Piccinni C, Raschi E, Rampa A, Recanatini M, Poni FD. Phytoestrogens in Postmenopause: The State of the Art from a Chemical, Pharmacological and Regulatory

Perspective. Curr Med Chem. 201 4;21(4):417-36. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/24164197.

- Podifigurna-Stopa A, Czyzyk A, Grymowicz R, Katulski K, Czajkowski K, Meczekalski B. Premature ovarian insufficiency: the context of long-term effects. J Endocrinol Invest. 2016; 39: 983–990. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4987394/.
- Pastore LM, Christianson MS, Stelling J, Kearns WG, Segars JH. Reproductive ovarian testing and the alphabet soup of diagnoses: DOR, POI, POF, POR, and FOR. J Assist Reprod Genet. 2018 Jan; 35(1): 17–23. <u>https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC5758472/</u>.
- Hewlett M, Mahalingaiah S. Update on Primary Ovarian Insufficiency. Curr Opin Endocrinol Diabetes Obes. 2015 Dec; 22(6): 483–489. <u>https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4883575/</u>.

Physical

Theories on Cancer Treatments

- Lattimer JA, Haub MD. Effects of Dietary Fiber and its Components on Metabolic Health. Nutrients. 2010 Dec;2(12) <u>https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3257631</u>.
- *EurekAlert! Fiber Intake Associated with Reduced Risk of Death. Washington (DC): The JAMA Network Journals. 2011. <u>https://www.eurekalert.org/pub_releases/2011-02/jaaj-fia021111.php</u>.*

III Appendix

MeSH. U.S. National Library of Medicine. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/mesh/.

Major Pathways in the Biosynthesis of Steroid Hormones. Encyclopædia Britannica. 2012.